 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF JASPER COUNTY, MISSOURI

DOLORES FORSTE and



)

STEVE FORSTE,




)








)



Plaintiffs,



)








)


vs.





)   Case No. 08AP-CC00016 








)

RITA HUNTER, individually and in 

)

her capacity as Public Administrator of 
)

Jasper County, Missouri and 


)

JOHN J. PODLESKI, and CRANDALL &
)  

PODLESKI, P.C., and Missouri Professional)  

Corporation,





)








)



Defendants.



)

FIRST AMENDED PETITION FOR DAMAGES

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS


1.
At all times material hereto, the Defendant Rita Hunter was the elected Public Administrator for Jasper County, Missouri.


2.
At all times material hereto, the Defendants John J. Podleski and Crandall & Podleski, P.C. were licensed attorneys in the State of Missouri.
3.
Venue is proper in this Court.


4.
Plaintiffs are residents of the State of California.


5.
All acts of the Defendant Rita Hunter, referred to herein were committed by her and through her servants, including Defendants John J. Podleski and Crandall & Podleski, P.C. and such actions were committed and done under color of state law.


6.
Defendants John J. Podleski and Crandall & Podleski, P.C. at all times material hereto were acting in concert with Defendant Rita Hunter. 

7.
The acts and conduct of Defendants John J. Podleski and 

Crandall & Podleski, P.C. were in concert with and attributable to and binding

on the Defendant Rita Hunter, and were committed under color of  state law of 

Missouri.


8.
That Plaintiff, Delores Forste’s mother, Emma France was at the time of these events a 95 year old woman living in Carthage, Missouri.


10.
That in December, 2006, Emma France was hospitalized in Joplin, Missouri with mild depression, after which time she was released to live on her own.


11.
That prior to December, 2006, Plaintiff’s mother Emma France had been the victim of several telephone scams which caused her to lose some of her monies.


12.
That prior to April 16, 2007, the Carthage police and Plaintiff, Dolores Forste, had been made aware of the scams and had worked with Ms. France and the police to stop the monies from being lost.


13.
That prior to April 16, 2007, Missouri Senior Services discussed private health and financial information about Emma France with Defendant Rita Hunter, and Missouri Senior Services later delivered to Defendant Rita Hunter private health and financial information in violation of Emma France’s right to privacy and in violation of  RSMo § 660.321.


14.
That thereafter on April 16, 2007, Defendants John J. Podleski and Crandall & Podleski, P.C. on behalf of and in concert with Defendant Rita Hunter filed a Petition in the Circuit Court of Jasper County, Missouri, a Petition for the Appointment of Guardian, Conservator, Guardian Ad Litem and Conservator Ad Litem as it concerns the Emma France,  case number 07AP-PR00172. A copy of the Petition is attached and made a part herewith as Exhibit 1.


15.
That the Petition Exhibit 1 failed to include the name and address of the Plaintiff Dolores Forste as required by RSMo §475.075 and thus failed to give the Court jurisdiction to proceed.


16.
That said Petition Exhibit 1, contained private and privileged 

health information about Emma France, by which and through the Petition Exhibit 1 was made public.


17.
That the Petition and a Notice were served upon Emma France on April 17, 2007.  A copy of the Notice is attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit 2.


18.
That no Notice of the filing of the Petition Exhibit 1 was ever sent to Plaintiff Dolores Forste or any of Emma France’s  relatives even those that were known, as required by RSMo §475.075 (2).

19.
That Shannon McKinney was appointed as attorney for Plaintiff Emma France and did visit with her one time.


20. 
That Shannon McKinney did report to the Court and did recommend the appointment of a conservator ad litem, but did not recommend that a guardian be appointed.


21.
That on April 25, 2007, at the instance and request of the Defendants, the Court did, without notice to Shannon McKinney and without notice to Emma France and without a hearing, and without considering the Plaintiff Dolores Forste, appoint Defendant Rita Hunter as guardian ad litem and conservator ad litem, all in violation of RSMo § 475.075(11) and RSMo §475.050(3).


22.
That Defendant Rita Hunter as guardian ad litem was appointed to represent Plaintiff Emma France’s interest in the litigation pursuant to RSMo § 475.060(7), which was a conflict for Defendant Rita Hunter.


23.
That thereafter on May 15, 2007, the Defendant Rita Hunter and or her servants without Order of the Court and without the permission of  Emma France did seize and kidnap Emma France across state lines to the State of Kansas to be allegedly examined by a doctor not of Emma France’s choosing and then took without authorization or permission a signed blank medical certificate.


24.
That the Defendant Rita Hunter or her employees did then fill out the blank medical certificate to be used to justify her appointment as guardian of Emma France, even though she knew that this was illegal.  A copy of the fake medical certificate is attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit 3.

25.
That on April 16, 2007, without the presence of  Emma France, and without notice to any of Emma France’s relatives, a hearing was had without a jury, witnesses whom Emma France had not been notified testified in violation of RSMo § 474.075 (2), her doctor-patient privileged ignored and violated, and the fake medical certificate was presented to the Court as genuine. 


26.
The Court then issued  its ruling and appointed Defendant Rita Hunter as guardian and conservator of Emma France.


27.
That on May 17, 2007, without Court Order and against the Judgment of the Court and without doctor’s orders, Defendant Rita Hunter without cause seized or caused to be seized Emma France and put her in the hospital in Carthage, Missouri.


28.
That thereafter Emma France asked Plaintiff Dolores Forste to take her to see her grandchildren and great-grandchildren out of the State of Missouri.


29..
That Emma France ended up at Plaintiff Dolores Forste’s home in Needles, California and expressed her desire to stay in California.


30.
That thereafter Defendants began to threaten Emma France and Plaintiff Dolores Forste, to force Emma France to return to Missouri.


31.
That in addition the Defendant Rita Hunter began to threaten Plaintiff Dolores Forste, demanding that Plaintiff Dolores Forste sign over to Defendant Rita Hunter, the last of Emma France’s funds.


32.
That thereafter the Defendants instigated and caused to be filed kidnapping, financial exploitation, and interference with custody charges against Plaintiff Dolores Forste, who was then arrested and jailed for three weeks in California during the Thanksgiving holiday.

33.
That Plaintiff Dolores Forste was then shackled between two men and forced to sit upright for over 72 hours while being transported to Missouri.

34.
That Plaintiff Dolores Forste was then required to post bond, hire an attorney to defend herself, and was unable to return to her home in California.

Count 1


COMES NOW THE PLAINTIFF Dolores Forste and for her cause of action against the Defendants upon Count 1, states to the Court as follows:


35.
By this reference, the Plaintiff incorporates each and every allegation and averment set forth in paragraphs 1 through 34 of the General Allegations as though fully set for herein in haec verba.


36.
That through the Petition and Order appointing Defendant Rita Hunter as guardian and conservator of Emma France, the Defendants have unlawfully and without due process of law as guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States seized the person of Plaintiff Dolores Forste.


37.
The process of the Petition and Order were void in that:


a.
Emma France was not given proper and required notice of the rights Emma France was entitled to in the process; and 


b.
Emma France was denied notice of the witnesses to be called; and 


c.
Emma France was not given the required notice of the Court’s intention for the appointment of Defendant Rita Hunter as guardian ad litem and conservator ad litem; and 


d.
Emma France was denied a required hearing concerning the appointment of Defendant Rita Hunter as guardian ad litem and conservator ad litem;


e.
Plaintiff Dolores Forste was not given notice of the filing of the Petition and hearing as required by Missouri law, thus denying the Court with substantive jurisdiction in the matter and making all orders of the Court void;  and 


f.
Emma France’s procedural due process rights were violated through the use a an inadequate and false doctor’s report and “examination” to which she did not agree to or which she did not give her consent.


38.
That thereafter Defendants used this void Court Order as the basis for instigating the seizure of Plaintiff Dolores Forste by causing and encouraging the filing of false criminal charges of kidnapping, financial exploitation, and interfering with custody and having Plaintiff Dolores Forste arrested, jailed and transported to Missouri against her will.

39.
That the Defendants acting jointly and in concert to unlawfully deprive the Plaintiff of her Constitutional right to freedom.


40.
That as a direct and proximate result of the acts committed by the Defendants, which were committed under the color of state law and misusing the authority of the state, the Plaintiff Dolores Forste suffered harm and damages and was deprived of her right to be secure in her person against unreasonable seizure under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments of the Constitution of the United States and 42 U.S.C. §1983.


41.
That as a direct and proximate result of the unlawful seizure instigated by the Defendants, the Plaintiff suffered damages in the loss of monies,  restrictions on her freedom of  movement, forced relocation back to Missouri against her will, mental anguish and stress, embarrassment and the need to hire attorneys to regain her  freedom.


42.
That the actions of the Defendants were outrageous in that acted with evil motive or in reckless disregard to the rights of plaintiff, entitling Plaintiff to punitive damages against the Defendants.


43.
That as a result of the actions of the Defendants, the Plaintiff Dolores Forste has had to employee attorneys to represent her, entitling her to attorney fees against the Defendants pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1988.


WHEREFORE the Plaintiff Dolores Forste prays for judgment against all the Defendants upon Count 1 for compensatory damages of a fair and reasonable amount, punitive damages and for her costs herein laid out and expended, including attorney fees.

Count 2


COMES NOW THE PLAINTIFF Dolores Forste and for her cause of action against the Defendants upon Count 2, states to the Court as follows:


44.
By this reference, the Plaintiff incorporates each and every allegation and averment set forth in paragraphs 1 through 34 of the General Allegations as though fully set for herein in haec verba.


45.
That the Defendants having acted in concert in instigating the filing of false criminal charges of kidnapping, financial exploitation, and interference with custody  against the Plaintiff, Dolores Forste, for the purpose of forcing Plaintiff Dolores Forste to return her mother Emma France to Missouri, made an illegal, improper, and perverted use of the criminal law of Missouri.


46.
That as a direct and proximate result of the acts committed by the Defendants, which were committed under the color of state law and misusing the authority of the state, the Plaintiff Dolores Forste suffered harm and damages and was deprived of her right to be secure in her person against unreasonable seizure under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments of the Constitution of the United States and 42 U.S.C. §1983.


47.
That as a direct and proximate result of the unlawful seizure instigated by the Defendants, the Plaintiff suffered damages in the loss of monies,  restrictions on her freedom of  movement, mental anguish and stress, and embarrassment and the costs of an attorney to obtain her freedom.


48.
That the actions of the Defendants were outrageous in that acted with evil motive or in reckless disregard to the rights of Plaintiff Dolores Forste, entitling Plaintiff Dolores Forste to punitive damages against the Defendants.


49.
That as a result of the actions of the Defendants, the Plaintiff Dolores Forste has had to employee attorneys to represent her, entitling her to attorney fees against the Defendants pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1988.


WHEREFORE the Plaintiff Dolores Forste prays for judgment against all the Defendants upon Count 2 for compensatory damages of a fair and reasonable amount, punitive damages and for her costs herein laid out and expended, including attorney fees.

Count 3


COMES NOW THE PLAINTIFF Dolores Forste and for her cause of action against the Defendants upon Count 3, states to the Court as follows:


50.
By this reference, the Plaintiff incorporates each and every allegation and averment set forth in paragraphs 1 through 34 of the General Allegations as though fully set for herein in haec verba.

 
51.
That as a direct and proximate result of the actions of the Defendants in taking custody of Emma France and denying her the close relationship with the rest of her family, such actions being committed under the color of state law, the Plaintiff Dolores Forste suffered loss and damage to her relationship with her mother, all in violations of her rights under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution and 42 U.S.C. §1983.


52.
That as a direct and proximate result of the actions of the Defendants in taking custody of Emma France and denying her the close relationship with the rest of her family, such actions being committed under the color of state law, the Plaintiff  Dolores Forste suffered loss and been deprived of the right to services, companionship, comfort, guidance, counsel and support of her mother, emotional distress and loss of her freedom, without due process of law, all in violations of her rights under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution and 42 U.S.C. §1983.


53.
That the actions of the Defendants were outrageous in that acted with evil motive or in reckless disregard to the rights of plaintiff, entitling Plaintiff to punitive damages against the Defendants.


54.
That as a result of the actions of the Defendants, the Plaintiff Dolores Forste has had to employee attorneys to represent her, entitling her to attorney fees against the Defendants pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1988.


WHEREFORE the Plaintiff Dolores Forste prays for judgment against all the Defendants upon Count 3 for compensatory damages of a fair and reasonable amount, punitive damages and for her costs herein laid out and expended, including attorney fees.

Count 4


COMES NOW THE PLAINTIFF Dolores Forste and for her cause of action against the Defendants upon Count 4, states to the Court as follows:


55.
By this reference, the Plaintiff incorporates each and every allegation and averment set forth in paragraphs 1 through 34 of the General Allegations as though fully set for herein in haec verba.


56.
That prior to and on September 17, 2007, the Defendant John Podleski was an assistant prosecutor for Jasper County, Missouri.


57.
That on September 17, 2007, the Defendants caused to be filed by the special prosecutor of Jasper County, Missouri the false criminal charges of kidnapping, financial exploitation and interference with custody against the Plaintiff Dolores Forste.

58.
That thereafter, the Defendants encouraged the issuing of an arrest warrant against Plaintiff Dolores Forste, and the arrest of Dolores Forste in California.

59.
That in November, 2007, the Plaintiff Dolores Forste was arrested and jailed in Needles, California.

60.
That thereafter, Plaintiff Dolores Forste was transferred to the jail in San Bernadino, California, where she spent three weeks waiting to be transported to the State of Missouri.

61.
In December, 2007, Plaintiff Dolores Forste was transported by private company, by shackling her between two other prisoners and have to sit upright for 24 hours a day until she arrived in Carthage, Missouri, on December 11, 2007.

62.
Thereafter Plaintiff Dolores Forste had to pay for a bond to be released from jail, but could not return to her home in California.

63.
On June 4, 2008, the prosecutor dismissed the charges against Plaintiff Dolores Forste.

64.
The Defendants’ actions in instigating and causing the filing of criminal charges against Plaintiff Dolores Forste were malicious in that they intentionally caused the criminal charges to be filed knowing that there was no claim against the Plaintiff Dolores Forste for any criminal act and that the charges were improper under the law of Missouri for the facts set forth, and further the Defendants continued to support the criminal charges even after they knew that the Order granting letters of guardianship and conservatorship were void, and that the Defendants knew that the purpose for instigating and causing the criminal charges to be filed was not the purpose of criminal charges, but for a purpose of forcing the Plaintiff Dolores Forste and Emma France to return Emma France to the State of Missouri, thus the actions of the Defendants were in bad faith, and further that the Defendant John Podleski knew that these criminal charges were for a purpose other than the proper adjudication of these criminal charges.

65.
That the Defendants acting jointly and in concert to unlawfully deprive the Plaintiff of her Constitutional right to freedom.


66.
That as a direct and proximate result of the acts committed by the Defendants, which were committed under the color of state law and misusing the authority of the state, the Plaintiff Dolores Forste suffered harm and damages and was deprived of her right to be secure in her person against unreasonable seizure under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments of the Constitution of the United States and 42 U.S.C. §1983.


67.
That as a direct and proximate result of the unlawful seizure instigated by the Defendants, the Plaintiff suffered damages in the loss of monies,  restrictions on her freedom of  movement, forced relocation back to Missouri against her will, mental anguish and stress, embarrassment and the need to hire attorneys to regain her  freedom.


68.
That the actions of the Defendants were outrageous in that acted with evil motive or in reckless disregard to the rights of plaintiff, entitling Plaintiff to punitive damages against the Defendants.


69.
That as a result of the actions of the Defendants, the Plaintiff Dolores Forste has had to employee attorneys to represent her, entitling her to attorney fees against the Defendants pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1988.


WHEREFORE the Plaintiff Dolores Forste prays for judgment against all the Defendants upon Count 4 for compensatory damages of a fair and reasonable amount, punitive damages and for her costs herein laid out and expended, including attorney fees.

Count 5


COMES NOW THE PLAINTIFF Steve Forste and for his cause of action against the Defendants upon Count 5, states to the Court as follows:


70.
By this reference, the Plaintiff incorporates each and every allegation and averment set forth in paragraphs 1 through 34 of the General Allegations as though fully set for herein in haec verba.


71.
That at all times mentioned herein, the Plaintiff Steve Forste was the husband of Plaintiff Dolores Forste.


72.
That by reason of the injuries sustained by Plaintiff Dolores Forste, Plaintiff Steve Forste has lost and been deprived of the companionship, consortium, services and society of his spouse.


WHEREFORE the Plaintiff Steve Forste prays for judgment against all the Defendants upon Count 5 for compensatory damages of a fair and reasonable amount and for his costs herein laid out and expended.

By:____________________

   





              R Lynn Myers

   






   MO Bar No. 25827

2045 S. Glenstone Ave., Suite 201

Springfield, MO 65804

(417) 887-7408

FAX (417) 877-7948

e-mail: rlynnm1@prodigy.net

Attorney for Plaintiffs

   






   Richard D. Crites

   






   MO Bar No. 28619

2045 S. Glenstone Ave., Suite 201

Springfield, MO 65804

(417) 887-8351

FAX (417) 877-7948

e-mail: richardcrites@sbcglobal.net

Attorney for Plaintiffs








  Amy Crites Snelson







            MO Bar #56339

2045 S. Glenstone Ave, Suite 201

Springfield, MO  65804

(417)889-8300

FAX (417) 877-7948

e-mail: amysnelson@mchsi.com
Attorney for Plaintiffs

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE


The foregoing pleading was served upon all attorneys of record for each of the parties to the action, and all parties not represented by legal counsel as listed below, in the following manner:

( ) By delivering a copy to them;

( ) By leaving a copy at their office with their clerk;

( ) By leaving a copy at their office with an attorney      

     associated with them;

( ) By faxing a copy to them, as prescribed by law at;

( ) By mailing a copy to them, as prescribed by law.

on the _____ day of ______________, 2008, at __________.








By:_______________________________



